
  
 

                                                                                                                                 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 
Charlotte Harbor Community Redevelopment Agency Advisory Committee 

September 10, 2012 – 10:30 a.m. 
CHARLOTTE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION CENTER, Room 119 

18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, FL  33948 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
III. Roll Call/Determination of Quorum 
IV. Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
V. Approval of Minutes 

 July 9, 2012 Minutes 
 

VI. Commissioner Comments 
VII. Public Comments 
VIII. Development Review Report 

 
IX. Old Business 

a. Bayshore Park – Tom Henry, Community Service 
b. Bayshore Park Special Events Report - Elizabeth Spicer  
c. Melbourne Bridge Landscape Plans – John Swen 
d. Architectural Standards (August 1, 2010 Draft Attached) 
e. Logo Date- Historical District Ordinance Change 
f. Harbor Walk Project Update  
g. Hands Across the Harbor Event 

 
X. New Business 

a. Walkability Study Report  
b. US EPA Brownfields Grant Resubmission 

XI. Correspondence & Communications 
a. Minutes from Punta Gorda CRA meetings of July 3, July 11 and August 15 
b. Reclaimed Water Line (Recap of previous Committee discussion) 
c. Sun News Article – Scavenger Hunt 

  
XII. Public Comments 
XIII. Staff Comments 

 
XIV. Attorney Comments 
XV. Member Comments 

 
XVI. Next Meeting/Dates for Your Calendar:   

 October 1, 2012 at 11:00 a.m., Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting - 
Charlotte County Administration Center, Room 119 

XVII. Adjournment 
 



MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

CHARLOTTE HARBOR 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

Monday, July 9, 2012 – 11:00 a.m. 
County Administration Building – Room 119 

18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, FL 33948 
 

 
Members Present   
James Herston, Chairman 
Garland Wilson, Vice Chairman  
Grace Amodeo, Secretary 
Nathaniel Cooley 
Michael Haymans 
 
Members Absent 
Charlotte Ventola  

Staff Present
Debrah Forester, Redevelopment Manager 
Roxann Read, Planner II 
Elizabeth Spicer, Event Planner 
Mike Koenig, Community Services 
 
Guests 
 

  
I. Call to Order 
 Chairman Herston called the July 9, 2012 meeting of the Charlotte Harbor Community 

Redevelopment Agency Advisory Committee to order at 11:00 a.m. in Room 119 of the 
Charlotte County Administration Building. 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Herston led the members and the audience in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

III. Roll Call/Determination of Quorum 
Roll call was taken; Secretary Grace Amodeo confirmed a quorum was present. 
 

IV. Additions/Deletions to Agenda – Mr. Herston requested that Item X.a - Roberts House be 
discussed after Item XI. a.     
 

V. Approval of Minutes  
A Motion was presented by Grace Amodeo, seconded by Garland Wilson and 
unanimously approved to accept the Minutes of the June 4, 2012 meeting as written.   
 

VI. Commissioner Comments    
Commissioner Deutsch was unable to attend today’s meeting.  

   
VII. Public Comments 

Evelyn Loeffler noted she has read the Architectural Guidelines Resolution, which will be 
discussed later in the meeting, and questioned if the Architectural Guidelines are changing from 
voluntary to mandatory.  Mr. Herston advised that the change from voluntary to mandatory 
actually took place in 2002, and today the recommended changes would be discussed.   
 
Dick Loftus stated that he supported the CRA taking a 6-month option on the purchase of the 
Chester Roberts’ property for the purpose of reaching out to the community to ascertain if there 
is community support to create a non-profit organization for the sole purpose of raising funds to 
purchase and maintain the property.  The private sector must be willing to support this property.  
There has been discussion regarding having bed and breakfasts in this area and the Roberts’ 
home would be suitable for this use.  A bed and breakfast could generate sufficient funds to 
maintain the property in perpetuity.  Chester Roberts was the first chairman of the CRA and 
through his leadership a redevelopment plan was created. 
 



 
Minutes Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting 
July 9, 2012                                                                                  Page 2 
 
    
 
VIII. Development Review Report – Jim Herston noted the structure for Advanced Auto Parts is 

under construction.   
 

IX. Old Business  
a. Bayshore Live Oak Park Playground Design – Mike Koenig, Community Services, reported 

funding has been secured for advancing the playground program and this includes 
equipment at Bayshore Park.  His office reached out to two companies under the state 
contract program for proposals.  Mr. Koenig distributed pictures of the equipment and layout 
planned for the Bayshore playground.   Staff will try to bring a proposal to the BCC later this 
month.  Discussion followed regarding curbing, the use of railroad ties or tie-like product to 
keep with theme, and flood tolerance of the pour-in-place product.  With regard to a small 
lighted water feature spraying water into air where the children could play, Mr. Koenig noted 
this feature is being looked into and noted it is treated like a swimming pool; a pump is 
required.  A Motion was presented by Michael Haymans, seconded by Grace Amodeo 
and unanimously approved to accept the concept plan provided by Community 
Services and authorize them to move forward with the Committee’s recommendation.   

 
Xa.  Roberts House – Debrah Forester gave a brief history of the property.  The Roberts house 
is located on the corner of Sibley and Seneca an area which was recently changed to NBR 
zoning.  There is a main house and a 2-unit apartment.  The inside of the house contains many 
artifacts/antiques from the 1920 – 1970s, which would be included with the purchase of the 
house. Some of these items could be sold after purchase.  Securing this property would provide 
historical, educational opportunities as well as having the potential to have an artist’s retreat, a 
gallery, retail/coffee shop.  Ms. Forester noted that financial support is not being requested 
today but asked for the Committee’s endorsement that this is something worth pursuing.  A 
separate, non-profit foundation could be set up to take this on and do the fundraising.  At least 
$200,000 is needed for purchase and rehab of the facility.  Elizabeth Burr is the selling agent for 
the house and represents Chester Roberts’ daughter who would like this historical home to stay 
with the people of Charlotte Harbor because her father was so involved in the CRA.  The asking 
price is $100,000, which includes the contents but the seller expects the sewer hook-up, 
$17,000, to be paid by the purchaser as well as taxes for this year which are about $2,000.  The 
seller is willing to do an option to allow the buyer the ability to raise the funds.  Mr. Herston 
noted the Property Appraiser shows the value at $64,000.  Ms. Burr noted there are some 
discrepancies on the County site, one being the age of the building.  Ms. Burr invited the 
Committee to tour the house.  Elizabeth Spicer mentioned she has toured the house and would 
value the antiques in the house between $50,000 and $100,000.  Ms. Spicer stated that under 
some agreement she would be willing to spearhead fund raising.   

 
Garland Wilson asked who would own and operate the home.  Ms. Forester noted that many 
historic homes are owned and operated by a non-profit Foundation or Historical Society.  The 
CRA is not being asked to own and operate, only to endorse the concept.  An appropriate owner 
would need to be identified.   
 
Michael Haymans talked about the historical buildings that are located in Punta Gorda at Shreve 
Park.  These buildings were donated to the Historical Society and the land they sit on is leased 
from the City for $1.  Mr. Haymans mentioned that the Roberts Home was brought to the 
Historical Advisory Committee for the County at a joint meeting with the City of Punta Gorda 
Historic Preservation Board.  The conclusion of the group was that it sounds like a very nice 
home to save, yes there ought to be encouragement to save and preserve it, but because of the 
condition of the house a private person should be buying it.  If the house can be a bed and 
breakfast, this would be a better project for a private investor.  If it becomes an issue that a 
private investor does not take on this project, this item could be revisited and reconsidered.    
 



 
Minutes Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting 
July 9, 2012                                                                                  Page 3 
 
    
 

A Motion was presented by Michael Haymans, seconded by Garland Wilson and 
unanimously approved to support the effort to save Roberts house in place and make it 
useful for historical purposes that fits the theme of the CRA.   
 
b. Elizabeth Spicer Report – Elizabeth Spicer reported that $800 was made this year.  Ms. 

Spicer pointed out that none of the money budgeted for events was spent due to the use of 
in-kind services.  Ms. Spicer thought more families were using the park since the alcohol 
ban was put in force.   
 
Garland Wilson suggested that Ms. Spicer talk with Cliff Kewley about the kayak launch.  
Ms. Spicer acknowledged that she will talk with Mr. Kewley and take recommendations to 
Community Services.   
 

c. Work Plan – The work plan spreadsheets were distributed with the meeting packet.  Michael 
Haymans asked if Ms. Forester had an opportunity to talk with Charlotte Ventola about this 
item. Ms. Forester and Ms. Ventola were unable to meet to discuss.  Ms. Forester explained 
the updates made to the work plan.  Nate Cooley asked staff to check previous Minutes to 
confirm the Advisory Committee’s stand on the reclaimed water project.   

 
Garland Wilson pointed out that the total TIF is paying for salaries and welcome sign 
maintenance; he suggested the Committee request the BCC to have the Economic 
Development Office pay for more of Ms. Forester’s salary, the Parks Department pick up 
more of Ms. Spicer’s salary and for a reduction in maintenance fees.  Discussion followed 
regarding this suggestion and it was the general consensus that things are getting done and 
the team is good.  Nothing currently needs to be done.   
 

d. Architectural Design Standards – A copy of the Architectural Design Standards with Garland 
Wilson’s proposed revisions were distributed with the meeting packet.  Debrah Forester 
asked if there were any questions or comments.  Michael Haymans asked for the meaning 
of “use” average value.  Mr. Wilson noted the language was taken from another municipality 
and agreed the word “use” could be deleted.   
 
Discussion followed regarding a color chart and it was decided the notation to add a color 
chart should be deleted.  Although there is a reference to colors and pictures on the website, 
they were not adopted as part of the code.   
 
Ms. Forester asked for discussion on the section addressing 6x6 windows and 2x2 windows 
(Section 8 E on the marked up version) which seems to be an issue for some retailers with 
their display windows.  Mr. Herston noted that this type of window is an option for points and 
not a requirement.  Mr. Herston added that he thought more point options are needed.  
  
Ms. Forester asked about a change to the section on Sheds at Page 10.  It was previously 
noted that there was a loophole in this restriction. Mr. Herston suggested the Minutes be 
reviewed to determine what was previously discussed and/or voted on by the Committee.   
 
Michael Haymans noted that on Page 7 at #2, under Secondary Roof Structures, 
Skylights…, the language could restrict solar collectors from being installed where they 
would be most useful.  Mr. Wilson thought putting solar collectors on the front of the house 
would take away from the other architectural features.   
 
Mr. Haymans also pointed at that in the Demolition section on Page 12, #1 it says there 
shall be no demolition until complete construction plans for the site are approved – but what 
if the property owner wants to tear down the structure and leave nothing?   



 
Minutes Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting 
July 9, 2012                                                                                  Page 4 
 
    
 

 
Staff will make changes and this item will be put on the September Agenda.  It was 
requested that a Revision Date be included on the next copy.   
 

e. Harbor Walk Update – SWFWMD Permit and FDOT Funding – Debrah Forester advised 
that the SWFWMD permit has been received; a notice was published in the paper; a letter 
was sent to FDOT asking that the advance funding request be reconsidered now that the 
transportation bill has been approved.  The lease with FDOT needs to be finalized by the 
attorneys but it is hopeful that it will go before the BCC at the end of August.   
 

f. Melbourne Bridge – Landscaping Plans – Debrah Forester advised the landscaping plans 
are at 60% and shared her copy with the Committee.  Kelly Slaughter has given her 
comments to the architect.   The Committee will be advised when the landscaping is 
schedule to be done.   
 

g. Walkable and Livable Communities Report – Debrah Forester mentioned a draft report has 
been received and is being reviewed by staff. 
 

h. Enhancement Zone Designation – Public Meeting – Ms. Forester reported the EDO has 
been talking with a party interested in Charlotte Harbor; the Enhancement/Brownfield Zone 
Designation would be a valuable tool.  Property owners would be able to opt out if they were 
not interested in participating.  Whidden Park, the 41 Corridor, the Riverwalk area and the 
County-owned Sibley Bay property would be the focus.  A Public Meeting could be 
scheduled in late August, early September.   
 

i. Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Codes Revisions Update – Roxann Read advised that the 
Comp Plan will be released in late fall for public review.   

 
X. New Business  

a. Roberts House was discussed earlier in the meeting. 
   
b. Charlotte Harbor CRA Public Meeting/Workshop – Ms. Forester suggested a Charlotte 

Harbor CRA Public Meeting be held in September or October to give the community an 
update, which could include zoning code changes, comp plan changes and the 
Enhancement Zone, if it goes forward.  A brief discussion followed and it was determined 
that October would probably be best because it would fit in with the release of the Comp 
Plan by Community Development. 
  
Garland Wilson asked if there was anything going on in Whidden Park.  The area was a 
mess after Hurricane Debby.  Mr. Herston advised that Public Works provided some cost 
estimates for improvements to the roads and utilities but nothing more has been done with 
the property owners.   

 
XI. Correspondence/Communications – The following information was forwarded with the 

meeting packet: 
a. Minutes from Punta Gorda CRA meetings of June 6, 2012 
b. Newspaper Articles 
c. Harbor Style Magazine Article 
 

XII. Public Comments  
Cliff Kewley noted there needs to be more pressure put on the Economic Development Office to 
keep Charlotte Harbor in the forefront.   
 



 
Minutes Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting 
July 9, 2012                                                                                  Page 5 
 
    
 

Mr. Wooden suggested that the point system used for the architectural design be revised to give 
more points for certain improvements; i.e., verandas are costly so more points could be 
awarded.   
 
Evelyn Loeffler asked about the possibility of a contemporary structure.  Jim Herston suggested 
that Ms. Loeffler meet with him after the meeting to talk about this.  Ms. Loeffler agreed.     
   

XIII. Staff Comments – Ms. Forester mentioned that there has been discussion regarding the 
established date of the Charlotte Harbor CRA.  It has been shown as 1862 but the Historical 
Committee has sent a letter to Commissioner Constance asking that the Ordinance be 
amended to show the established dated to 1872.   Once finalized the logo will need to be 
revised.  A Ponce de Leon Program is tentatively planned for March 29 at Bayshore Live Oak 
Park.  The CRA has been asked if they would like to participate and Ms. Forester suggested 
that Elizabeth Spicer might be able to coordinate something.  Mr. Haymans noted that he will be 
participating.  Ms. Forester reminded the Committee that there is still a vacant “resident” seat of 
the Committee.   Ms. Forester reported that the Sheriff’s Department will be cleaning up 
overgrown areas on July 14.   
 

XIV. Attorney Comments – Derek Rooney was not present at this time.   
  
XV. Member Comments 

Grace Amodeo mentioned she is gathering information which could be used to create a 
Charlotte Harbor brochure.   
 
Michael Haymans noted that he has been working with Debrah Forester and Teri Ashley to form 
a Charlotte Harbor focus group.  Crew Charlotte Harbor has formed a corporation.  The public 
will be invited to join.  Mr. Haymans also noted the next Hands Across the Harbor event will be 
on January 26, 2013.   

 
XVI. Next Meeting Date 

The next regular meeting of the Charlotte Harbor Community Redevelopment Agency Advisory 
Committee will be held on Monday, September 10, 2012 at 10:30 a.m. in Room 119 of the 
Charlotte County Administration Center. 
 

XVII. Adjournment 
There being no further business, the meeting ADJOURNED at 1:10 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 
Grace E. Amodeo, Secretary    Approved:     

  











August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

1 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER 2002-119 

 
A RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-9-50.6 (A) OF THE 
CODE OF LAWS AND ORDINANCES OF CHARLOTTE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 96-026 TO DELETE 
THE VOLUNTARY ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN GUIDELINES 
UTILIZED WITHIN THE CHARLOTTE HARBOR COMMUNITY 
OVERLAY DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR MANDATORY DESIGN 
REQUIREMENTS FOR USE WITHIN THE CHARLOTTE HARBOR 
COMMUNITY OVERLAY DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING FOR 
INTENT, APPLICABILITY, AND SEVERABILITY.  

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Code of Charlotte County, Florida (the “County”) is set 

forth in Chapter 3-9 of the Code of Laws and Ordinances of Charlotte County, Florida, 

(the “Zoning Code”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 96-011 dated February 20, 1996, the 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners (the “Board”) created Section 3-9-50 

of the Zoning Code which sets forth the Charlotte Harbor Community Code (“CHCC”); 

and 

WHEREAS, the CHCC governs land development within the Charlotte Harbor 

Community Redevelopment Area (the "Community Redevelopment Area" or the 

“CRA”); and  

WHEREAS, Section 3-9-50.3 (a) and Section 3-9-50.6 (a) of the Zoning Code 

provide for the establishment of the Charlotte Harbor Architectural Design Guidelines by 

the Board; and  



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

2 
 
 

WHEREAS, Section 3-9-50.6 (a) provides that the guidelines shall become an 

attachment to the Zoning Code as Addendum 1 and shall be applicable throughout the 

CRA as provided in Section 3-9-50.3 (a); and 

WHEREAS, Section 3-9-50.6 (a) of the Zoning Code authorizes the Board to 

amend the Charlotte Harbor Architectural Design Guidelines from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3-9-50.6 (a) of the Zoning Code initially provided that the 

guidelines “…are not intended to be mandatory and are intended to be used in an 

advisory capacity only;” and 

WHEREAS, the Board enacted non-mandatory or advisory architectural design 

guidelines for the CRA (the “Original Guidelines”) pursuant to Resolution No. 96-026 

dated February 20, 1996; and 

WHEREAS, the Board subsequently enacted Ordinance No. 96-052 on July 17, 

1998, which amended Section 3-9-50.6 (a) of the Zoning Code to eliminate references 

to the Original Guidelines as non-mandatory or advisory in nature; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to amend Resolution No. 96-026 to delete the 

Original Guidelines and to replace them with mandatory design criteria and 

requirements that are consistent with the aforementioned amendment to Section 3-9-

50.6 (a) of the Zoning Code; and  

WHEREAS, the Board deems the aforementioned amendment to Resolution No. 

96-026 to be in the best interests of Charlotte County and the CRA.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Charlotte County Board of  
 
County Commissioners: 

 
 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

3 
 
 

 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT. Section 3-9-50.6 of Resolution No. 96-026 is hereby 
deleted in its entirety and amended to set forth the text of Sections 2 through 13 of this 
“Resolution.”  The text of Sections 2 through 13 shall henceforth be known as the 
Community Redevelopment Area Design Requirements (“CRA Design 
Requirements”). Pursuant to Section 3-9-50.6 of the Zoning Code, the CRA Design 
Requirements shall become an attachment to the Zoning Code as Addendum 1 and 
shall be applicable throughout the CRA as provided in Section 3-9-50.3. 
 
SECTION 2.  PURPOSE. The purpose of the CRA Design Requirements is to regulate 
the design of new construction and the repair, rehabilitation or remodeling of existing 
structures throughout the CRA.  

 
SECTION 3.  INTENT. The intent of the CRA Design Requirements is to enhance and 
maintain the character of the CRA by establishing design requirements that serve two 
primary functions.  The first is to enhance the integrity of existing structures. The second 
is to create a community whose character is consistent with the “old Florida” vernacular 
style of architecture.  The latter development is anticipated over time, particularly as the 
Requirements are applied to new construction.  
 
SECTION 4.  OLD FLORIDA VERNACULAR. The “old Florida” vernacular style was 
selected by the Community Redevelopment Area Advisory CRAAC ("CRAAC") as an 
architectural pattern for the CRA after consideration of a number of architectural styles.  
The CRAAC settled upon the “old Florida” vernacular for several reasons, including the 
presence of the “old Florida” vernacular throughout the CRA, the association of the “old 
Florida” vernacular with waterfronts and fishing villages and the proximity of the CRA to 
the Charlotte Harbor portion of the Peace River.  As used herein, the term “Period” 
denotes time period(s) that are distinguishable by the use of architectural pattern(s) 
feature(s) and design(s) that are consistent with the “old Florida” vernacular.  The term 
“Specifications” shall mean architectural patterns, features and designs that are 
consistent with the “old Florida” vernacular.  
 
SECTION 5.  CLASSES AND APPLICATION OF CRA DESIGN REQUIREMENTS. 
In addition to the period requirements and the general requirements, there are four (4) 
specific classes of CRA Design Requirements: 
 

A. Period Requirements (Section 7); 
B. Class I Design Requirements (Section 8); 
C. Class II Design Requirements (Section 9); 
D. Class III Design Requirements (Section 10); and 
E.  Class IV Design Requirements (Section 11); and . 
F.  General Requirements and Specifications (Section 12). 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

4 
 
 

There are five (5)four (4) classes of construction projects in the CRA.  Each class of 
construction must comply with all classes of Requirements that are applicable to that 
class of construction in order to fulfill the terms of this Resolution plus all General 
Requirements. The five (5)four (4) classes of construction are:  
 

A. Class I Projects (Section 8) ; 
B. Class II Projects (Section 9);  
C. Class III Projects (Section 10); and 
D. Class IV Projects (Section 11); and,. 
E. Class V  All Development (Section 12). 

 
 Class I Projects are new construction and reconstruction requiring the elevation 
of existing structures to regulatory base flood levels.  Class I Projects consist of the 
building of a new structure, or modification or addition to an existing structure such that 
the existing structure must be elevated to meet base flood elevation requirements 
pursuant to the Floodplain Management provisions of the County Code. Class I Projects 
are governed by the Class I Design Requirements, the Period Requirements and the 
General Requirements and Specifications.   
 
 Class II Projects are rehabilitation of commercial structures.  Class II Projects 
consist of any repair, rehabilitation or remodeling of an existing commercial structure 
valued at fifty percent (50%) or more of the use average value of the existing structure 
over a five (5) year period regardless of whether such repair, rehabilitation or 
remodeling requires elevation of the existing structure to regulatory base flood levels 
pursuant to the Floodplain Management provisions of the County Code. Class II 
Projects are governed by the Class II Design Requirements, the Period Requirements 
and the General Requirements and Specifications.   
 
 Class III Projects are residential rehabilitation not requiring the elevation of 
existing structures to regulatory base flood levels. Class III Projects also include 
commercial rehabilitation, reconstruction, remodeling, or additions valued at forty-nine 
percent (49%) or less of the use average value of the existing structure over a five (5) 
year period.   Class III Projects are governed by the Class III Design Requirements and 
the General Requirements and Specifications.   
 
 Class IV Projects consist of decks, patios; permanent swimming pools; fences, 
walls, gazebos, sheds and other outbuildings, vending booths, carts, and other 
miscellaneous displays. Class IV Projects are governed by the Class IV Design 
Requirements and the General Requirements and Specifications. 
 

Class V Projects include all All development within the CRA including, without 
limitation, Class I Projects, Class II Projects, Class III Projects and Class IV Projects. 
The term “development” is defined in Section 12 hereof. In addition to all other 
Requirement(s) that a development is subject to, all development activity in the CRA is 
subject to the General Requirements and Specifications.  



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

5 
 
 

SECTION 126. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR.  ALL 
DEVELOPMENTS. 
 
Applicability 
The General Requirements and Specifications apply to all development in the CRA.  As 
used in this Section, “development” shall mean any activity for which a building permit, 
excavation permit, tree removal authorization, or other County authorization which has 
the effect of allowing land clearing or construction activities must be obtained prior to 
the commencement of such activities. Development includes, but is not limited to, Class 
I Projects, Class II Projects, Class III Projects and Class IV Projects. 
 
Generally 
Due to the broadness of the General Requirements and Specifications, each General 
Requirement and Specification will not pertain to every type of development activity in 
the CRA. The determination as to whether a General Requirement and Specification 
affects a particular development activity will be made by the Zoning Official and/or a 
designee in connection with the application. 
 
Materials 
Wherever these General Requirements and Specifications or any other CRA Design 
Requirement reference the use of Period materials, nothing herein shall preclude the 
use of modern materials that are the visual equivalent of Period materials and which are 
equal or superior to Period materials in regard to strength and durability.  
 
Building Orientation 
Building entrance shall be oriented to the primary street with the main entrance visible 
from the primary street.  buildings located on corner parcels are encouraged to frame 
the building to anchor the building and provide the best use of the location.  
 
Exteriors 

Wood 
Wood is the most commonly used material for architectural features such as 

clapboards, cornices, brackets, entablatures, shutters, columns and balustrades.  These 
wooden features are important in defining the character of a structure.  The retention, 
protection and repair of all wood features shall be required in all rehabilitation projects. 
 

Exterior Siding Alternatives 
  1.  Weatherboard, clapboard of lapped siding. 
  2.  Wood, vertical board-and-batten siding with  
        1" x 2" or 1" x 3" battens. 
  3.  Wood, horizontal novelty or drop siding. 
 
A combination of exterior siding materials is prohibited unless Period evidence indicates 
otherwise or additions were clad differently than the original structure.  The introduction 
of a new wood feature that is incompatible in size, scale, material, and color is 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

6 
 
 

prohibited.  Exterior siding should be painted. 
 
Balustrades 
 1.  Wooden balustrades are significant in defining the Period character of frame 
structures.  They shall be retained and preserved. 
 
 2.  When replacement is necessary, balustrades shall be replaced with materials 
that are compatible with the structure. 
 
 3.  New balusters shall match the original balusters in size and height above the 
porch floor. 
 
Masonry 
 1.  Masonry features (such as brick cornices and door pediments, stone window 
architraves, terra cotta brackets and railings) as well as masonry surfaces (molding, 
bonding patterns, joint size and color) are important in defining the Period character of a 
building.  It should be noted that while masonry is among the most durable of building 
materials, it is also the most susceptible to damage by improper maintenance or repair 
techniques and by harsh and abrasive cleaning methods. 
 
 2.  Masonry features that are important in defining the overall Period character of 
the building such as walls, brackets, railings, cornices, window architraves, door 
pediments, steps, and columns shall be identified, retained, and preserved. 
 
 3.  Masonry features shall be repaired using recognized preservation methods.  
Where masonry features are too deteriorated to repair, they shall be replaced in kind 
using physical evidence to guide the work. 
 
Roofing (Materials) 
The replacement or substitution of Period roofing materials on Period structures with 
roof treatments that are inconsistent with the Period (e.g. Spanish tile) is prohibited.  
Masonry joints must be repointed and.  dDeteriorated mortar to be removed by hand. 
 
Roofs (Shape) 
 1.  The roof with its shape, features such as dormers, widow's walks, and 
chimneys, and the size, color, and patterns of the roofing material are extremely 
important in defining the building's overall character. 
 

2.  A roof's shape, Periodic roofing material and features such as dormers, 
widow's walks, chimneys, scuttles, or roof porches shall be retained and preserved.  
The form and configuration of a roof must not be altered in pitch, design or shape. 
 

3. Changing the configuration of a roof such that the Period character is 
diminished is prohibited. 
 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

7 
 
 

Gutters 
Gutter style is reflective of the property’s history in terms of appearance and technology.  
Only the half-rounded style of gutter shall be installed on structures erected prior to 
1900.  Only half-round or "ogee" style shall be installed on structures erected after 
1900. 
 
Dormers 
 1.  Dormers are gable projections of an attic room that allow for a vertical window 
opening. 
 
 2.  A dormer addition shall be in scale and harmony with the existing building, 
shall be placed in a location with the least visibility,  shall have a roof consistent with 
that of the existing structure and shall have windows of the same design as the existing 
structure. 
 
 3.  The juncture of the dormer roof with the main roof to be below the ridgeline of 
the main roof.   
 
Widow's Walks  
A widow's walk addition shall be in scale and harmony with the existing structure.  
Period evidence of the prior existence of a widow's walk shall be the best justification for 
such an addition. 
 
Secondary Roof Structures, Skylights and Scuttles 
 1.  Whenever possible, original skylights and wood roof scuttles shall be retained 
and preserved. 
 
 2.  Flat roof windowsmounted solar collectors, scuttles and skylights shall be 
located on the side that is least visible from a public street. 
 
Entrances, Porches, and Doors 
 1.  Entrances and their functional and decorative elements that are important in 
defining the Period character of a building, such as doors and door openings, fanlights, 
sidelights, pediments, hardware, pilasters, columns, balustrades, and stairs shall be 
identified retained and preserved.   
 
 2.  Whenever possible, four-or six-paneled wood doors or horizontal panel doors 
as featured on late 19th and early 20th century buildings shall be utilized.  In lieu thereof, 
French doors or doors with a single large light over one of two horizontal panels are 
acceptable.  Larger buildings may have paired entry doors.  French doors or Ssliding 
glass doors may be appropriate for side or back entry but not front. French doors may 
be appropriate throughout the structure.   
 
 3.  The additions of sidelights and entryway surrounds that are not original to the 
entrance are prohibited. 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

8 
 
 

 
 4.  Whenever possible, entrances and porches shall be repaired by reinforcing 
existing materials.  When repair is not possible, limited replacement in kind or with 
compatible substitute materials shall be allowed. 
 

5.  An entire entrance or porch that is too deteriorated to repair shall be 
replaced in kind.  If the form and detailing are still evident, the physical evidence shall 
be used to guide the new work.  If using the same kind of materials is not technically or 
economically feasible, then a compatible substitute material shall be used. 

 
 6.  In constructing a new entrance or porch, the design shall be compatible in 
size, scale, material, and color with the character of the building. 
 
 7.  A porch on an existing structure, which contributes to the Period character of 
the structure, shall not be removed.  If a porch is to be enclosed, it shall be done in a 
manner consistent with the style and materials of the existing structure in a manner that 
preserves the character of the building. 
 
Columns, Posts, and Pillars 
 1.  Existing posts or columns that contribute to defining the character of the 
building shall be retained and preserved. 
 
 2.  When columns must be replaced, they shall be replaced with columns 
compatible in size, scale and material. 
 
 3.  Columns that have historically defined a building shall not be replaced with 
posts or pillars that are uncharacteristic of a building's style.  For example, simple 4" x 
4" wood square posts, not rounded, decorative columns, shall be utilized for a shotgun 
style house. 
 
Exterior Stairs 
 1.  Exterior staircases shall be retained, preserved and, when necessary, 
replaced with materials that are compatible with both the individual structure and the 
CRA.  Replacement of wood stairs with concrete stairs is prohibited. 
 
 2.  The balusters, newel posts, and rails of an exterior staircase shall be replaced 
with the same material, and shall be proportional to the main structure. 
 
 3.  Period stairways shall be upgraded to meet health and safety codes in a 
manner that assures their preservation. 
 
 4.   New exterior stairs are not allowed. 
 
Ramps 
Ramps, where required, shall be concealed with landscaping as much as possible, and 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

9 
 
 

shall blend with the scale and architectural features of the building. 
 
Windows 
 1.  Windows and their functional features that contribute to defining the Period 
character of the building shall be identified, retained and preserved.  Such features 
include frames, sash, muntins, glazing, sills, paneled or decorated jambs and moldings, 
and interior and exterior shutters and blinds. 
 
 2. When the replacement of windows in a structure is unavoidable, the 
replacement windows shall maintain the character of the structure. 
 
 3.  Changing of the number, locations, size, or glazing pattern of windows by 
cutting new openings, blocking in windows, and installing replacement sash that does 
not fit a window opening is prohibited, except in the case of life/safety requirements.. 
 

4. Period windows shall only be replaced with Period windows.  Repair and 
restoration of Period windows shall maintain the Period character of the windows. 
 

5. Window glazing shall be clear, transparent, untinted and non-reflective.  
Stained glass may not be used on primary facades, except as an accent to the primary 
door or window covering no more than 10% of the total area.  Original transoms or 
sidelights may not be removed or changed. 
 
Shutters 
 1.  Existing shutters and their functional and decorative elements shall be 
retained, repaired and preserved. 
 
 2.  If the overall form and detailing are still evident, a set of shutters that is too 
deteriorated to repair shall be replaced in kind using the physical evidence to guide the 
work.  If using the same kind of material is not technically or economically feasible, a 
compatible substitute material shall be utilized.  Hurricane shutters or panels shall be 
architecturally compatible with the building.  When traditional shutters are not feasible or 
are inappropriate, removable storm panels shall be utilized (panels are stored except 
during a storm).  Tracks for removable panels shall be painted to match the wall.  Roll-
down shutters shall be utilized on commercial buildings so as to allow concealment of 
the overhead casing.  Accordion shutters shall be utilized on existing commercial 
buildings only if the stacked shutter is not conspicuous within the opening.  Aluminum 
awnings/shutters are prohibited.   
 
Awnings 
 1.  Historically, the canvas or metal awning was an important design element in 
the traditional storefront, providing cover and added color.  Awnings served as a 
transition between the storefront and the upper facade. 
 
 2.  Standard street level awnings shall be mounted so that the valance is 8 feet 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

10 
 
 

above the sidewalk elevation and projects out no more than 4 feet from the building2/3 
of the sidewalk width. 
 
 3.  Awnings shall be attached above the display window and below the cornice.  
An awning shall reinforce the frame of the storefront and shall not cover the space 
between the second story windowsills and the storefront cornice. 
 
 4.  The size, scale, and shape of awnings shall be appropriate to the specific 
building. 
 
 5.  If a flat canopy exists, it shall be dressed up with a 12- to 24-inch awning 
valance.  Round or dome-shaped awnings must be compatible with the structures on 
which they are to be placed, and shall be in proportion to the entryway. 
 
 6.  Signage on an awning valance shall be approved on a case-by-case basis, 
taking into consideration the total number of signs per building or business 
establishment as provided by the County Code.  Lettering shall be one-half the height of 
the valence. 
 
 7.  Awnings used as vehicle shelters are prohibitedFree standing fabric 
covered structures are not allowed if they meet building code. 
 
Exterior Paint 
Neon and fluorescent colors shall not be used on any structure in the CRA.  The use of 
black paint shall be limited to trim. (ADD PAINT COLOR CHART) 
 
Building Environment 
 1.  Features such as gardens, walkways, streets, alleys, plants, trees, fencing, 
and building setbacks which have traditionally linked buildings to their environment and 
which reflect the property's development shall be utilized and, in the case of existing 
structures, retained. 
 
 2.  For walkways in residential areas, brick or paver type treatment shall be used 
whenever possible. 
 
 3.  Traditional lawn and garden arrangements, with emphasis given to regional 
flora, shall be utilized whenever possible. 
 
 4.  Concrete or gravel lawns, and permanent aboveground or in-ground 
swimming pools or hot tubs are prohibited in front yards. At least 25 percent  (25%) of a 
front yard shall be landscaped, and shall not be covered by brick, concrete, or gravel. 
 
 5.  Widening of existing streets, changing the paving materials, and introducing 
new streets and new parking lots shall be done in a manner which is compatible with 
the character of the neighborhood and maintains the relationship of the buildings to the 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

11 
 
 

environment. 
 
Gazebos, Sheds, and other Outbuildings 
 1.  The design of any gazebo, shed, or other outbuilding greater than one 
hundred square feet (100 sq. ft) in area shall be complementary in terms of design, 
scale, proportion, color, finish, and details to the main building. No more than two sheds 
are allowed on any one residential parcel.   
 

2. Siting on the lot shall determine the allowable location and dimensions. 
 
3.  Temporary outside storage units shall be allowed to remain on a property for 

30 days in a calendar year unless the Zoning Official authorizes a greater period of 
time. 
 
 Lattice Infill 
 1.  The space between the floor of the house and the ground shall be screened 
with lattice between supports of the house. 
 

2.  Only one type of infill shall be used for each house.  Lattice infill may be 
wood or recycled plastic.  If wood, the lattice shall be a minimum of one-quarter-inch (”) 
and pressure-treated.  Posts on which the lattice is to be mounted shall be set on four 
(4) foot centers.   

 
Storefronts 
 1.  Because storefronts play a critical role in a store's advertising strategy to draw 
customers, they are often altered to meet the needs of a new business.  Care shall be 
taken when working on storefronts so that the building's character is preserved in the 
process of rehabilitation. 
 
 2.  Storefronts and their functional and decorative elements that are important in 
defining the character of the building, such as display windows, doors, transoms, corner 
posts, entablatures, cornices, signs, and bulkheads shall be retained and preserved. 
 
 3.  Fluorescent lighting shall be baffled so that lamps are not visible from the 
public right-of-way.  Where neon tubing is visible from the street and used to outline 
building facades or window/door openings, it shall be limited to signage and not 
extended to bands. 
 
 4.  The remodeling of storefronts shall be done in Period style and materials.  
Repairs to storefronts and their features shall maintain the existing character of the 
structure.  

 
5.  Only appropriately scaled signs and logos that do not obscure, damage, or 

destroy a building's existing features shall be used. 
 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

12 
 
 

 6.  The use of chaser lights is prohibited. 
 
 7. See Charlotte County Ordinances for CRA District sign requirements. 
 
Air Conditioning Units 
 1.  Air conditioning units shall be installed in such a manner that Period material 
and features of a building are not damaged or obscured.  Construct ramp on less visible 
elevation using wrap-around design to achieve needed grade change.   
 
 2.  Through-the-wall air conditioning units or window units shall not be installed in 
the facade (front) of a building. 
 
 3.  Air conditioning units shall be placed in new openings that align with the 
existing window frame.  Molding shall be utilized as a trim element. 
 
 4.  Air conditioning units shall be concealed by landscaping and placed in the 
rear of a lot so as not to be seen from the street. 
 
Garbage and Trash 
 1.  When not at curbside for pick up, garbage and trash units shall be placed out 
of the public view. 
 
 2.  Whenever possible, Aa picket fence or other approved enclosure shall be 
utilized to screen areas where garbage and trash are stored prior to pick up or disposal. 
 
Inspection of Excavations 
Significant archaeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 
preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken according to State and Federal Regulations. 
 
Discovered artifacts shall be promptly reported to the Charlotte County Historic 
Preservation Board and the appropriate State and Federal authorities.  Excavation of 
utility trenches, cisterns, and foundations require notification in advance so that 
activities may be monitored. 
 
Demolition 

  Demolition will not be allowed until complete construction plans for the 
site are approved. 

 
Metal Carports 
Metal carports shall be utilized only on 1950/60's Mackle/GDC or other structures that 
were originally constructed with the structure. 
 
SECTION 67.  DEFINITIONS. 
 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

13 
 
 

For purposes of this Resolution, the terms set forth in Appendix “A” attached hereto 
and by reference made a part hereof shall have the meanings provided therein unless 
expressly provided otherwise in a particular section of this Resolution or unless the 
context clearly requires otherwise. 
 
SECTION 78.  PERIOD REQUIREMENTS.  (CLASS I PROJECTS AND CLASS II 
PROJECTS). 
 
Both Class I Projects and Class II Projects shall be required to comply with the Period 
Requirements.  Class I Projects and Class II Projects, which include a minimum of four 
(4) of the features, below, shall be deemed in compliance with the Period 
Requirements, except that Class I and Class II projects which utilize a metal roof or 
Veranda consistent with the Period shall only be required to select two (2) of the 
features below in addition to the Period metal roof or Veranda. 
 
A.  A veranda which runs the entire length of a structure’s primary facade, minus any 
portion of the primary facade necessary for vehicular access (e.g., garages), provided 
the length of veranda not located along the primary facade due to vehicular use is 
located along one of the sides abutting the primary facade as a continuous, “wrap-
around” veranda. 
 
B.   A metal roof of design and materials consistent with the Period. 
 
C.  A widow’s walk. 
 
D.  A cupola. 
 
E.  The use of 6/6 or 2/2 double hung windows 
 
F. Awnings/Canopies – Placement, size, and shape must be compatible with the 
character of the building. They should be wide enough to cover the window or door 
opening and can be made of canvas or metal, shiny/high gloss color are not 
appropriate. Vinyl or plastic is prohibited.  Fixed or retractable awnings are acceptable. 
They may be used on the street or upper stories as long as they are appropriate to and 
maintain the architectural style of the façade. Awnings on commercial structures should 
be open sided and valances are permitted,  Awnings should not cover architectural 
features of the building. 
 
G. Shutters – exterior, fixed louvered or panel that are sized appropriate to the window 
frame. Color should complement the color of the main façade.  Bahama shutters are not 
permitted on the front, street level windows on commercial buildings.  They can be used 
on the upper story.   
 
 
HF.  The use of decorative lattice or “gingerbread” treatments at gable peaks, building 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

14 
 
 

corners and other appropriate areas of the structure as illustrated in the “Pictures,” as 
defined below.   
 
I. Ground level details – to encourage visual interest along the ground level of the 
building facing pedestrian streets. At least two of the following elements should be 
included; low level decorative lighting; hanging flower baskets; planter boxes; decorative 
pavers leading to front door; pedestrian seating. 
 

 
 
 
 
The CRAAC has adopted a series of “Pictures” that depict structures that reflect the 
Period vernacular.  By this reference, the Pictures are made a part hereof.  The Pictures 
are available for public inspection at the Community Development Department, and may 
be available for inspection through the County Web Site.  The CRAAC reserves the 
right to add and remove photographs from the Pictures, as the case may be, provided 
that a complete set of the Pictures shall be made available for public inspection at the 
location provided above.  The purpose of the Pictures is to present visual examples of 
combinations of design features that result in structures that display the Period 
vernacular. 
 
SECTION 89.  CLASS I  DESIGN REQUIREMENTS.  CLASS I PROJECTS. 
 
General 
Class I Projects consist of new construction and reconstruction requiring the elevation of 
existing structures to regulatory base flood levels. Class I Projects are governed by the 
Class I Design Requirements, the Period Requirements and the General Requirements 
and Specifications. Class I Projects are intended over time to create a community 
whose character is consistent with the Period style of architecture. The Period 
Requirements, Class I Design Requirements and the General Requirements and 
Specifications shall be employed before design development work begins so that the 
required relationships that properly relate individual buildings to the total environment 
can be established.  
 
Site design and site preparation 
Improvements to property shall be undertaken with careful consideration to natural 
features, including but not limited to topography, drainage, and vegetation.  To the 
greatest extent possible, natural features shall be incorporated into site design.  For 
example, on-site stormwater ponds shall be located in those portions of the site which 
naturally occur at lower elevations in order to minimize the amount of fill material 
necessary to elevate the property in order to achieve drainage.  This example also 
illustrates how proper site design will compliment other goals of the CRA including the 
preservation of canopy trees and the minimization of fill within No-Fill Areas. 
 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

15 
 
 

Compatibility 
Class I Projects shall be compatible with the character of the CRA in terms of size, 
scale, design, materials, color and texture. 
 
Contemporary designs 
Contemporary designs shall complement and shall not conflict with the Period 
Requirements, the Class I Design Requirements and the General Requirements and 
Specifications.  The distinction between contemporary and existing designs shall be and 
remain evident.  Factors that shall be considered in blending contemporary with existing 
structures include, without limitation, size, pedestrian scale, relationship of building 
mass to adjacent structures, relationship to existing architectural details, elements, 
materials, color, texture and styles in the CRA, and similarity of window and door 
proportions.  
 
Materials, Textures, and Colors 
Exterior finishes in the CRA are wood or block/stucco with various types and colors of 
roofing materials. Roofing materials shall be consistent in appearance with the Period. 
Class I Projects shall establish a relationship with existing structures by utilizing the 
finishes and roofing materials required by this Resolution. 
 
 Siting 
No Class I Project shall be placed closer to the sidewalk, street, or visible alley, than the 
distance that has been predetermined by existing structures.  Areas that have 
traditionally been reserved for parks or open spaces shall remain. Requirements for 
building setbacks shall be established either by studying original zoning permits and plat 
maps, by establishing a uniform setback or as provided by the Zoning Code. 
 
Height 
The height of all Class I Projects shall not exceed the maximum height standard 
established for the zoning district within which the subject property is located. There 
shall be a complementary relationship of height between new buildings and existing 
adjacent structures. An attached exterior addition shall be located at the rear or on an 
inconspicuous side of a structure, limiting its size and scale in relationship to the 
building. 
 
Additions 
New additions shall not destroy features that characterize the property and shall be 
undertaken in such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and 
integrity of the property and its environment would be unimpaired. 
 
Infill Requirements 
Where lattice is used to enclose open areas underneath buildings resulting from the use 
of pilings, piers, and methods of achieving elevation that do not result in opacity, only 
one type of lattice infill may be used for an individual structure.  



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

16 
 
 

 
Colors 
Neon and fluorescent colors shall not be used on any structure in the CRA.  The use of 
black paint shall be limited to trim.    
 
Lighting 
All street lighting, yard lighting, and for commercial development, parking and vehicular 
circulation area lighting shall be done in accordance with the General Requirements and 
Specifications, and shall be further designed, shielded, installed, or otherwise 
accomplished so as to contain all illumination within the development site.  Exterior 
lighting shall not exceed the lower of the lowest portion of the roofline or fifteen (15) 
feet.       
 
SECTION 109.  CLASS II DESIGN REQUIREMENTS.  CLASS II PROJECTS. 
 
Applicability 
Class II Projects consist of existing commercial structures undergoing exterior 
reconstruction (including additions), rehabilitation, or remodeling such that the value of 
the structure is increased by fifty percent (50%) or more as measured over a five (5) 
year period of time.  Class II Projects are governed by the Class II Design 
Requirements, the Period Requirements and the General Requirements and 
Specifications.   As used in this Section, the term “development” shall mean any exterior 
reconstruction, remodeling, rehabilitation, or addition to an existing structure.   
 
Generally 
The Period Requirements, the Class II Design Requirements and the General 
Requirements and Specifications shall be employed before design development work 
begins so that the required relationships that properly relate individual buildings to the 
total environment can be established.  
 
Site design and site preparation 
Where Class II Projects also trigger the need for additional site improvements (for 
example, additional parking or stormwater treatment), such improvements shall be 
undertaken with careful consideration to natural features, including but not limited to 
topography, drainage, and vegetation.  To the greatest extent possible, natural features 
shall be incorporated into site design.  For example, on-site stormwater ponds shall be 
located in those portions of the site which naturally occur at lower elevations in order to 
minimize the amount of fill material necessary to elevate the property in order to achieve 
drainage.  This example also illustrates how proper site design will compliment other 
goals of the CRA including the preservation of canopy trees and the minimization of fill 
within No-Fill Areas. 
 
Landscaping 
Parking lots and vehicular circulation areas associated with commercial redevelopment 
within the CRA shall be treated as new development and must be landscaped in 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

17 
 
 

accordance with Article XVIII of Chapter 3-5 of the County Code.  Interior and perimeter 
landscaping areas are included within the scope of the preceding sentence.  This Class 
II Design Requirement shall control and supercede any exemption afforded to existing 
paved parking areas from compliance with landscaping standards that are applied to 
new paved parking areas pursuant to Sec. 3-5-392 of the County Code. 
 
Compatibility 
Class II Projects shall be compatible with the character of the CRA in terms of size, 
scale, design, materials, color and texture as provided in Section 12 of this Resolution. 
 
Contemporary designs 
Contemporary designs shall complement and shall not conflict with the Period 
Requirements, the Class II Design Requirements and the General Requirements and 
Specifications. The distinction between contemporary and existing designs shall be and 
remain evident.  Factors that shall be considered in blending contemporary with existing 
structures include, without limitation, size, pedestrian scale, relationship of building 
mass to adjacent structures, relationship to existing architectural details, elements, 
materials, color, texture and styles in the CRA, and similarity of window and door 
proportions.  
 
Siting 
No new addition shall be placed closer to the sidewalk, street, or visible alley, than the 
distance that has been predetermined by existing structures.  Areas that have 
traditionally been reserved for parks or open spaces shall remain.  Criteria for building 
setbacks shall be established either by studying original zoning permits and plat maps, 
by establishing a uniform setback or as provided by the Zoning Code.   Additions other 
than additional floors shall be located at the rear or on an inconspicuous side of a 
structure, limiting its size and scale in relationship to the building. 
 
Height 
Class II Projects shall not exceed the maximum height standard established for the 
zoning district within which the subject property is located. There shall be a 
complementary relationship of height between additions that increase the height of the 
structures to which they are added and existing, adjacent structures. 
 
Additions 
New additions shall not destroy existing Period features that characterize the property 
and shall be undertaken in such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential 
form and integrity of the property and its environment would be unimpaired. 
 
Infill Requirements 
Where lattice is used to enclose open areas underneath buildings resulting from the use 
of pilings, piers, and methods of achieving elevation that do not result in opacity, only 
one type of lattice infill may be used for an individual structure.  



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

18 
 
 

 
Colors 
Neon and fluorescent colors shall not be used on any structure in the CRA.  The use of 
black paint shall be limited to trim. 
 
Lighting 
All exterior lighting shall be done in Period style, and shall be further designed, shielded, 
installed, or otherwise accomplished so as to contain all illumination within the 
development site.  Exterior lighting shall not exceed the lower of the lowest portion of 
the roofline or fifteen (15) feet. 
 
SECTION 1011.  CLASS III DESIGN REQUIREMENTS.  CLASS III PROJECTS.  
 
Applicability 
Class III Projects consist of all residential rehabilitation, reconstruction, remodeling, or 
additions which do not require elevation of the existing structure to regulatory base flood 
levels pursuant to the County’s Floodplain Management Regulations, or to which the 
provisions of Section 8 of this Resolution do not otherwise apply. Class III Projects also 
include commercial rehabilitation, reconstruction, remodeling, or additions valued at 
forty-nine percent (49%) or less of the value of the existing structure over a five (5) year 
period.  Class III Projects are governed by the Class III Design Requirements and the 
General Requirements and Specifications.   
 
General 
Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  
While most properties change over time, it is the intention of this Section that the 
character of properties undergoing reconstruction, rehabilitation, or to which additions 
are added be maintained through preservation of distinctive features, finishes, 
construction techniques, or examples of craftsmanship.  Section 12 of this Resolution 
shall be utilized to provide guidance for the treatment of design elements, materials, 
treatments, and finishes. Changes that are inconsistent with the character of a property 
(such as architectural elements) are prohibited.   
 
Scale.  
No existing structure shall be enlarged so that its proportions, particularly height, are out 
of scale with its surroundings.  On any given block or area where a variety of sizes and 
styles exist, no structure shall surpass the majority of the structures in that area.  
Alterations shall be made in a manner that does not alter the scale of the streetscape.  
 
Alterations 
The alteration of existing Period features is prohibited unless the alteration is necessary 
to salvage the structure. Whenever possible, deteriorated Period features that 
characterize a property shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement of a Period feature, the new Period feature shall 
match the old Period feature in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

19 
 
 

where possible, materials.  Documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence shall justify and 
substantiate the replacement of missing Period features. 
 
Exterior alterations and related new construction shall not destroy Period features that 
characterize the property and shall be undertaken in such a manner that if removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the property and its environment would be 
unimpaired.  New features shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features of existing features in order to protect the integrity of the structure, 
the property and the environment.   
 
The removal or alteration of exterior spaces (such as porches, courtyards, etc.) that 
characterize a property is prohibited unless the removal or alteration is necessary to 
salvage the property or doing so enables the incorporation of Period design elements.   
 
The removal of Period materials is prohibited unless the Period materials are too 
deteriorated to repair.  New Period materials shall be utilized to replace deteriorated 
Period materials. If new Period materials are unavailable, modern building materials and 
techniques that are visually equivalent to the Period materials shall be utilized.  
 
SECTION 1112.  CLASS IV DESIGN REQUIREMENTS.  CLASS IV PROJECTS. 
 
Class IV Projects consist of decks, patios, permanent swimming pools, fences, walls, 
gazebos, sheds and other outbuildings, vending booths, carts, and other miscellaneous 
displays.  Class IV Projects are governed by the following Class IV Design 
Requirements. 
 
Swimming Pools 
Permanent swimming pools, spas, or Jacuzzis shall not be visible from the front of the 
building. 
 
Fences and Walls 
 1.  Fences and walls are important elements of the design and character of a 
structure and district.  The scale and character of a fence and its posts and gates shall 
be compatible with the house and neighboring structures. 
 
 2.    The height of fences and walls shall be governed by the standards of the 
zoning district within which the fence or wall occurs or is proposed to occur. 
 

3.  The beginning point for six-foot fences shall be rear-ward from the point 
where the façade of the house joins the front porch, or a minimum of  ten (10) feet from 
the front property line.  This Class IV Design Requirement shall not be construed to 
exempt applicants from having to obtain a variance as may be required by the County 
Code regarding setback requirements from fences and walls. 

 
4. All concrete walls shall be stuccoed and capped.  



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

20 
 
 

 
5. Unless approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals for another location by way 

of a special exception in accordance with Section 3-9-7 of the County Code, 
chain-link fencing shall not be installed forward of the back wall(s) of any 
structure.  No request for a special exception to allow chain link fencing in any 
other location shall be placed on the Board of Zoning Appeals’ agenda until 
such time as the Community Development Department receives a written 
recommendation regarding the requested special exception from the 
Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee. 

 
6. Reed fencing is prohibited. 

 
7. Fence structures erected within the required setback area (i.e. between the 

property line and the setback line) are subject to the same height restrictions as fences 
erected on the property line. 
 
Vending Booths, Carts, and Other Merchandise Displays 
The use or storage of vending booths, carts, and other merchandise displays is 
prohibited in the front yard or side yard of any structure adjoining a public street (i.e. 
between the front or side facade and the public right-of-way or sidewalk), and are 
prohibited in public rights-of-way.  Vending carts or booths shall be located only in or on 
the periphery of parking lots, where vending will not displace required parking, or 
otherwise vacant properties.  Merchandise shall not be mounted or displayed on the 
exterior surface of the front facade.   All vending machines shall be placed in kiosks or 
enclosures constructed in Period style and materials. 
 
SECTION 13.  APPEALS. 
Any applicant seeking approval of development subject to these regulations aggrieved 
by the decisions of the Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee or its Architectural 
Review Subcommittee regarding interpretation or application of the requirements found 
herein may appeal such decisions to the Zoning Official who shall render a written 
determination regarding the disputed matter(s) which shall be considered the final 
resolution to the matter(s), subject to appeal as provided by Section 3-9-6 of the County 
Code.  
 
SECTION 14.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.  
 
CAPTIONS.  The captions of this Resolution are inserted for convenience or reference 
only and not to define, describe or limit the scope or the intent of this Resolution nor any 
provision or term hereof.  
 
OTHER LAWS. This Resolution shall not be construed to imply a waiver or exemption 
from any existing mandates imposed by Federal and State laws and regulations and or 
the County Code. Without limitation, the preceding sentence shall encompass any 
mandates imposed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

21 
 
 

 
SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, portion shall be deemed a 
separate, distinct, and independent portion of this Resolution and such holding shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Resolution. 
 

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 
20022012. 

 
     BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
     OF CHARLOTTE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 
     By_______________________________ 
             Mac V. HortonChristopher G. Constance, 
Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
Barbara T. Scott, Clerk of Circuit 
Court and Ex-officio Clerk to the 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
By________________________ 
    Deputy Clerk 
 

     APPROVED AS TO FORM  
     AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     Reneé Francis LeeJanette S. Knowlton, 
County Attorney 
 

p:/wpdata/louis/CharHarCRA/ComDesStds/ 
Architectural Design Guidelines.8-27-02 

 
APPENDIX “A” 

 
ARCH:  A structural member shaped in the arc of a curve. 
 
ARCHITRAVE:  The lower part of a classical entablature, which rests on a column. 
 
BALUSTER:  A post or upright supporting a handrail, often vase-shaped, a series of 
which makes up a balustrade. 
 
BALUSTRADE:  A banister, railing, handrail or barrier. 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

22 
 
 

 
BARGEBOARD:  The decorative board attached to the projecting portion of a gable. 
 
BRACKET:  A support element under eaves, shelves, or other overhangs. 
 
CHAMFER:  The surface formed by cutting off a corner of a board or post; a bevel. 
 
COLUMN:  A vertical support generally consisting of a base, circular shaft and capital. 
 
CORNICE:  The horizontal molded projection at the top of a building or wall. 
 
CRESTING:  A light repeated ornament, incised or perforated, carried along the top of a 
wall or roof. 
 
CUPOLA:  A spherical roof or dome-roofed structure built on top of a roof. 
 
DORMER:  A vertical window set in a sloping roof or a roofed structure containing such 
a window. 
 
EAVES:  The projecting overhang at the lower edge of a roof. 
 
ENTABLATURE:  A horizontal part in a classical post and beam system composed of 
the cornice, frieze and architrave. 
 
FACADE:  The front or principal face of a building. 
 
FINIAL:  An ornament at the top of a spire, gable or pinnacle. 
 
FRIEZE:  The part of the entablature between the architrave and cornice; any 
sculptured or ornamented band in a building. 
 
GABLE:  The triangular portion of a wall between the enclosing lines of a sloping roof. 
 
HIP ROOF: A roof with four uniformly pitched sides. 
 
LATTICE:  A structure consisting of strips of metal or wood, crossed or interlaced to 
form regularly spaced openings. 
 
LINTEL:  A beam of any material used to span an opening (also known as an 
architrave). 
 
LOUVRE:  A series of inclined slats in a vertical frame allowing ventilation without 
admitting rain. 
 
MOULDING:  A continuous decorative band that is either carved into or applied to the 



August 1, 2012 DRAFT 

23 
 
 

surface. 
 
MULLION:  A vertical member that divides a window or separates one window or door 
from another.   
 
MUNTIN:  The wood or metal strips that divide a multi-pane window. 
 
PARAPET:  A low solid protective wall or railing along the edge of a roof or balcony. 
 
PEDIMENT:  A wide, low-pitched gable above a portico or door. 
 
PORCH:  A covered structure or recessed space at the entrance of a building. 
 
PORTICO:  A major porch, with a pedimented roof supported by columns. 
 
RAFTER:  Part of a wooden roof frame sloping down from the ridge to the eaves and 
establishing the pitch. 
 
RIDGE:  The highest point of the roof, running from end to end. 
 
SASH:  A frame or window in which glass is set. 
 
SHUTTER TIEBACKS: Hardware used to secure open shutters. 
 
STUCCO:  A type of plasterwork, either coarse or fine, used for surfacing interior or 
exterior walls. 
 
TRANSOM:  A small window over a door or large window. 
 
TURRET:  A small slender tower, usually set at the corner of a building, often containing 
a circular shaft. 
 
 
 



Existing Shed Language 
 
Permit is needed for all sheds 
 
The total maximum coverage area of all accessory structures shall not exceed the greater of one 
thousand (1,000) square feet or one‐half (½) the footprint of the principal structure. Nothing herein shall 
be construed to permit lot coverage in excess of the thirty‐five (35) percent maximum lot coverage 
established in subsection (f) of this section. Owners of property one (1) acre or more in size may apply 
for a special exception from the total maximum coverage area limitation established in this subsection.  
 



CITY OF PUNTA GORDA, FLORIDA 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING - JULY 3, 2012 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Albers, Goldberg, Wallace, Freeland, Sturges, Keesling,  
 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Weikel  
 
CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: Executive Director Kunik, CRA Attorney Levin, Recording Secretary 

Foster  
 
 Chairman Albers called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. 

Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of June 6, 2012 

 Commissioner Sturges MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Goldberg. 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 

CRA Project Status Report 

Executive Director Kunik displayed a PowerPoint presentation, as delineated in the 

agenda material, providing an update on the Laishley Park Marina and uplands, Punta 

Gorda Waterfront Hotel Harborwalk, Harborwalk west, Linear Park, downtown flood 

improvements and Wood Street lighting projects.  

Commissioner Keesling recommended members review the amended plans for Linear 

Park 2 to ascertain whether all amenities should be included, commenting any excess 

funds would be reallocated to Harborwalk west. 

 Chairman Albers stated the amenities could be bid as add alternates. 

Executive Director Kunik stated the amended design would be completed by CRA’s 

August 15, 2012 meeting.  

Interlocal Agreement (Revised) with Charlotte County regarding Community 

Redevelopment Area Extension 

Executive Director Kunik advised the agreement was as had been agreed to by both the 

CRA and the County Commission. He noted the timeframe was extended to 2030; 

however, prepayment was permitted. He added County Commission approval would be 

required for any new projects. 

 Commissioner Freeland MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Wallace. 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 

 Commissioner Sturges inquired as to the property values in the CRA area. 

Executive Director Kunik responded same were reduced by .5%, adding staff had 

projected a 1.2% decline. 

A Resolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Punta Gorda, 

Florida requesting an amendment to the 1990 Punta Gorda Downtown 

Redevelopment Plan ("Plan") pursuant to Section 163.361(1), Florida Statutes to 



 
extend the time certain for the payment of indebtedness and obligations as 

contemplated by the Plan to December 31, 2030; and providing an effective date. 

 CRA Attorney Levin read the resolution by title.  

 Commissioner Goldberg MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Sturges. 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Commissioner Sturges commended the Fire Department during Tropical Storm Debby 

as driving in the downtown area had been redirected safely.  

 The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 a.m. 

 
                                                                                                          ____________________________ 
                                                                                    Chairman 
 
_________________________________ 
Recording Secretary 



CITY OF PUNTA GORDA, FLORIDA 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING - JULY 11, 2012 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Albers, Goldberg, Wallace, Freeland, Sturges, Keesling, Weikel  
 
CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: Executive Director Kunik, CRA Attorney Levin, Recording Secretary 

Foster  

 
 Chairman Albers called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 

Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of July 3, 2012 

 Commissioner Sturges MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Weikel. 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 

A Resolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Punta Gorda, 

Florida requesting an amendment to the 1990 Punta Gorda Downtown 

Redevelopment Plan ("Plan") pursuant to Section 163.361(1), Florida Statutes to 

extend the time certain for the payment of indebtedness and obligations as 

contemplated by the Plan to December 31, 2030; and providing an effective date. 

           SECOND READING 

 CRA Attorney Levin read the resolution by title.  

 Commissioner Freeland MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Keesling. 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 

 The meeting was adjourned at 9:03 a.m. 

 
                                                                                                          ____________________________ 
                                                                                    Chairman 
 
_________________________________ 
Recording Secretary 



CITY OF PUNTA GORDA, FLORIDA 1 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES 2 

REGULAR MEETING - AUGUST 15, 2012 3 
 4 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Albers, Goldberg, Wallace, Sturges, Keesling, Weikel 5 
 6 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Freeland  7 
 8 
CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: Executive Director Kunik, CRA Attorney Levin, Recording Secretary 9 

Foster  10 

 11 
 Chairman Albers called the meeting to order at 9:22 a.m. 12 

Approval of Minutes: Special Meeting of July 11, 2012 13 

 Commissioner Sturges MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Wallace. 14 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 15 

CRA Project Status Report 16 

Executive Director Kunik displayed a PowerPoint presentation, as delineated in the 17 

agenda material, while providing an update on the Laishley Park Marina and uplands, 18 

Submerged Lands Lease amendment, Punta Gorda Waterfront Hotel Harborwalk, 19 

Harborwalk west, Linear Park, Wood Street lighting and downtown flood improvements 20 

projects. 21 

Letter of Intent to Lease Space in Herald Court Centre - Serendipity Hair Salon & 22 

Spa 23 

Executive Director Kunik advised the letter of intent had been withdrawn; however, it 24 

was possible a larger space may be considered in the near future.  25 

Lease Commencement Agreement with Subway 26 

Executive Director Kunik explained the agreement would confirm the lease 27 

commencement and expiration dates.  28 

 Commissioner Goldberg MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Sturges. 29 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 30 

Invoice of Icard, Merrill, Cullis, Timm, Furen & Ginsburg, P.A., for services 31 

rendered to the Community Redevelopment Agency by David M. Levin, Esq. 32 

through August 7, 2012. 33 

 Commissioner Keesling MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Weikel. 34 

 MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 35 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 36 

Commissioner Rachel mentioned meetings on the 125th Anniversary Committee 37 

continued to be held and she would have a report in a few weeks. 38 

Commissioner Weikel advised he would not be in attendance at the September 39 

meeting. 40 



 

DRAFT     CRA Minutes     2      August 15, 2012     DRAFT 

 The meeting was adjourned at 9:36 a.m. 41 

 42 
                                                                                                          ____________________________ 43 
                                                                                    Chairman 44 
 45 
_________________________________ 46 
Recording Secretary 47 













Date: Sep 4, 2012; Section: Charlotte Sun (Local); Page: CS2 

‘Scavengers’ hunt for prizes  
By MERAB-MICHAL FAVORITE 

   STAFF WRITER  

   CHARLOTTE HARBOR — The comment that he was “just not good enough,” gave the grownups a chuckle. Age 4 
was a little too young for self-loathing, but Teagan Rogan was upset he had not found even one item during the 
Labor Day scavenger hunt at Bayshore Live Oak Park in Charlotte Harbor. 

   While his sister, Mia Sutter, 9, flaunted a blue bear she picked up in the grass, Rogan spotted a pine cone in the 
shrubs. He hurried over and grabbed it, skipping back with a grin from ear to ear. Now all that remained was a 
feather. 

   Several different species of birds in the park touted their plumage as if to taunt the young explorers. While their 
parents, Julie Rogan-Sutter and Chad Sutter, didn’t want them scaling the seawall to look along the shoreline, they 
compromised by allowing them to search the dock, but the feather still eluded them. The children gathered a total of 
19 of the 20 items listed on a handout, which ranged from school supplies to natural foliage. 

   Despite their shortcoming, Mia and Teagan’s efforts were rewarded with goodie bags donated by the Charlotte 
Harbor Community Redevelopment Agency, in partnership with Charlotte County Community Services, who 
sponsored the scavenger hunt on Monday. Beginning at 9 a.m., a handful of  children age 9 and under were invited 
along with their parents, grandparents or guardians, to meet at the two-story pavilion and hunt for items listed on a 
handout. 

   “We want people to come out and enjoy the parks,” said Elizabeth Spicer, who does community relations for the 
Charlotte Harbor CRA. 

   Bayshore Live Oak Park in Charlotte Harbor is part of the county’s plan to revitalize the harbor waterfront. While 
the park was first purposed over two decades ago, the project didn’t come to fruition until 2008. An area that once 
accommodated “crime, drugs and prostitution,” as former commissioner Dick Loftus once put it, is now a safe haven 
for families to fish, bike and play. 

   While the brother-sister duo assessed their prizes,  other children in the park seemed content just being outside. 

   Caleb Hamrick, 13, and Lucas Vazquez, 10, fished off one of the three docks located in the park. 

   Vazquez, of Broward County, was vacationing with his parents and grandparents. 

   “When I saw the hotel, I was so happy because there was a dock right in front of it,” said Lucas. “I was glad I could 
just come down here and throw a line in.” 

   Vazquez’s reward for  the day was hooking three catfish and one “weird fish” that he couldn’t identify. He said 
fishing was his favorite pastime, dancing being second. 

   Hamrick relaxed in his foldable chair and waited for the “drags to take off” on either of his two reels. Hamrick said 
he and his father often come from Arcadia and visit the park to fish while his mother works locally as a hairdresser. 

   “I just enjoy being out on the water,” he said. 

   Email: mfavorite@sun-herald.com  

Page 1 of 3

9/5/2012http://scc.eed.sunnewspapers.net/olive/ode/charlotte_sun/PrintComponentView.htm



 

SUN PHOTOS BY MERAB-MICHAL FAVORITE 

   Caleb Hamrick relaxes as he waits for the fish to start biting on a pier at Bayshore Live Oak Park in Charlotte 
Harbor. 

 

Teagan Rogan takes a peek at the prizes during the Labor Day scavenger hunt. 

 

Caleb Hamrick holds up a mullet caught off the dock at Bayshore Live Oak Park. 

Page 2 of 3

9/5/2012http://scc.eed.sunnewspapers.net/olive/ode/charlotte_sun/PrintComponentView.htm



 

At right: Teagan Rogan holds up a pinecone he found in the shrubs. 

 

At left: Mia Sutter holds up a highlighter that she found during the Labor Day scavenger hunt. 

 

At left: A toy waits to be discovered at the Labor Day scavenger hunt held at Bayshore Live Oak Park. 

Page 3 of 3

9/5/2012http://scc.eed.sunnewspapers.net/olive/ode/charlotte_sun/PrintComponentView.htm


	20120910 AGENDA - CH CRA Advisory Committee
	20120709 MINUTES Charlotte Harbor CRA
	Melbourne Bridge Landscape Plans 082112
	L1.pdf
	L2
	L3
	L4

	CH CRA Architectural Design Guidelines August 1 2012 Version
	Existing Shed Language
	X1. b Reclaimed Water Discussion
	20120904 SUN Scavengers' hunt for prizes

